
 

 

 

EXTRAORDINARY  

LICENSING 

COMMITTEE 
________________________________________________ 

 

Tuesday, 16 June 2015 at 6.00 p.m. 
 

C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 
E14 2BG 

 
The meeting is open to the public to attend.  

 

Members: 
 

Ward Represented 

Chair:   Councillor Amy Whitelock Gibbs Bethnal Green; 
Vice-Chair:   Councillor Peter Golds Island Gardens; 
 
 Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed Bromley North; 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed Lansbury; 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed Spitalfields & Banglatown; 
Councillor Mahbub Alam St Dunstan's; 
Councillor Shah Alam Mile End; 
Councillor Amina Ali Bow East; 
Councillor Rachel Blake Bow East; 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury Poplar; 
Councillor Andrew Cregan Island Gardens; 
Councillor Md. Maium Miah Canary Wharf; 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah Bromley North; 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim St Peter's; 
Councillor Candida Ronald Blackwall & Cubitt Town; 
 
[The quorum for this body is 3 Members] 

 

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Simmi Yesmin, Democratic Services,  
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4120 
E-mail: simmi.yesmin@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web:http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 

Scan this code for 
an electronic 
agenda:  

 



 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page. 

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf . 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda.  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, Apple and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 
4) 

 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 
 

PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

2 .1 Determination of Applications for Sexual 
Entertainment Venues   

 
 

5 - 240 Shadwell; 
Spitalfields 

& 
Banglatown; 
St Peter's; 

Whitechapel 
 
 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

Meic Sullivan-Gould, Monitoring Officer, Telephone Number: 020 7364 4801 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Non-Executive Report of the: 

Licensing Committee 

16 June 2015 
 

 
Report of: Legal Services  

Classification: 
Unrestricted 

Determination of Applications for Sexual Entertainment Venues 

 

Originating Officer(s): Gurwinder Kaur Olive, Senior Lawyer 

Wards affected: (1) Shadwell (2) Whitechapel(3) St Peter’s and  
(4) Spitalfields&Banglatown 
 

 
 
1  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report briefly explains the terms of reference, Membership, and Quorum 

of the Licensing Committee and sets out the process for the determination of 
Sexual Entertainment Venues (SEVs) and the imposition of conditions on SEV 
licenses. 

 
 
2 TERMS OF REFERENCE, MEMBERSHIP & QUORUM 
 
2.1 The terms of Reference, Membership, and Quorum are set out in 

Appendices1 and 2 to this report.   
 
2.2 The function for determining SEV applications was reserved to the Licensing 

Committee by the Council when the legislation for licensing of SEVs was 
adopted on 26 March 2014.  A copy of the report extract and decision are set 
out in Appendices 3 and 4 to this report. 

 
 
3 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND: 
 
3.1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets adopted the provisions of Schedule 3 

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (‘LGMPA’) in 
relation to the licensing of sex establishments, as amended by Section 27 
Policing and Crime Act 2009.  These provisions came into force in Tower 
Hamlets on 1 June 2014.  

 
3.2 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No.1 andTransitional and 

Savings Provisions) (England) Order 2010 (‘the Order’) makes 
specialtransitional provisions in relation to SEVs during the transitional period.   

 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 5



 
3.3 The transitional period lasts for 12 months starting from the ‘first appointed 

day, which is the day when the LGMPA comes into force in the local 
authority’s area (i.e. 1 June 2014).  The day six months following the ‘first 
appointed day’ is known as the ‘second appointed day’ (1December 2014), 
and the day on which the transitional period ends is known as the ‘third 
appointed day’ (1 June 2015). 

 
 

4 APPLICATIONS FOR SEVS 
 
4.1 Since the first appointed day, new applicants,i.e. people wishing to use 

premises as a SEV who did not already have a premises licence or club 
premises certificate to operate as such under the Licensing Act 2003 Act, or 
did have such a licence but had not taken any steps towards operating as 
suchimmediately before 1 June 2014, have not been able to operate as a SEV 
without a SEV licence. 

 
4.2 Existing operators whoimmediately before the first appointed day had a 

Licensing Act 2003 (‘the 2003 Act’)premises licence, and lawfully used 
premises as a SEV under thatlicence or were undertaking preparatory work to 
use the venue in that way, have been allowed to continue to provide relevant 
entertainment until the thirdappointed day (1 June 2015), or the determination 
of any application they submit before 1 June 2015 (including any appeal 
against refusal to grant a licence), whichever is later. 

 
4.3 As the Licensing Authority is able under the statutory scheme to 

refuseapplications by having regard to the number of SEVs that they 
considerappropriate for a particular locality, all applications made on or after 
the first appointed day but on or before the second appointed day (i.e. 
between 1 June and 1 December 2014 inclusive) must be considered together 
prior to a determination being made in respect of any of them, asrequired by 
article 7(2) of the Order. 

 
4.4 New applications made after the second appointed day cannot be determined 

until all the previous applications have been determined. 
 
4.5 The Tower Hamlets Sex Establishment Licensing Policy proposes ‘nil’ as the 

appropriate number of SEVs for the borough.  The Policy provides that the 
Council will not apply this limitation when considering applications from 
existing operators if they can demonstrate in their application: 

• High standards of management 

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue and  

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for SEVs 
 

Page 6



4.6 Article 7(3) of the Order provides that if an existing operator who made one of 
the applications referred to in paragraph 4.4 above is granted a licence before 
the third appointed daythat licence does not take effect until the third 
appointed day, 1 June 2015. 

 
4.7 Five applications in total have been received for the grant of a SEV Licence 

between the first appointed day and the second appointed day in respect of 
the following venues: 

• Charlie’s Angels, 30 Alie Street, E1 

• Metropolis, 234 Cambridge Heath Road, E2 

• Nag’s Head, 17-19 Whitechapel Road, E1 

• White Swan. 556 Commercial Road, E14 

• White’s Gentleman’s Club, 32-38 Leman Street, E1 
 

4.8 Charlie’s Angel’s was accepted as an application by a new operator and the 
remaining four as applications from existing operators.  In order to allow 
sufficient time to determine the applications a waiver for a SEV License was 
granted to Charlie’s Angels until 1 July 2015, which allows it to continue to 
operate for the short-term. 
 

4.9 Applications in each matter were referred to the Licensing Committee for 
determination in accordance with the London Borough of Tower Hamlet’s 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 

4.10 The Committee held hearings as follows: 

• Nag’s Head Public House on 17 March 2015 

• White’s Gentleman’s Club on 14 April 2015 

• Charlie’s Angels on 12 May 2015 
 

4.11 A hearing was not required in respect of Metropolis and White Swan 
applications, which were initially considered on paper, as there were no 
objections or history of complaints.  A Committee Meeting took place on 28 
April to consider these two application as well as the standard conditions for 
all applicants. 
 

4.12 On 28 April 2015, for each application the Committee outlined any concerns 
that it had in respect of the specific applications concerning the character of 
the applicant, the layout etc. of the proposed SEV premises, the use of other 
premises in the vicinity and the character of the relevant locality, along with 
the Council’s Sex Establishment Licensing Policy.  The Committee discussed 
the existing standard conditions, the proposed additional conditions and those 
conditions offered at the hearings. During this discussion it became apparent 
that there was a lack of clarity to some existing conditions. It was also 
considered that in the key areas of performer welfare, customer tariffs and 
advertising that there was a lack of clarity, consistency and a failure to meet 
the objectives of the SEV policy in the Borough. The Committee accordingly 
approved a fresh set of draft standard conditions reflecting the applications, 
submissions and policy consideration and provided these to the applicants for 
comment prior to any final decision being taken.  

Page 7



4.13 The minutes for the above hearings are set out in Appendices 5 to 8 to this 
report. 
 

4.14 Agenda Packs in respect of each of these applications and the relevant 
hearings can be found on the Council’s website at the following link:   
http://edemoc2ksrv:8070/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=324&Year=0 
The Agenda Packs have not been reproduced as this Meeting will be dealing 
with Conditions only. 
 

 
5 GRANT AND REFUSAL OF SEV LICENSES  
 
5.1 The options open to this Committee in respect of determining each application 

are: 

• Grant the licence as applied for, attaching the standard conditions; or 

• Grant the licence, varied from what was applied for and/or attaching  
expressly varied conditions instead of or in addition to the standard 
conditions; or  

• Refuse the application. 
  
5.2 Once the Committee has decided to grant a licence they are able to impose 

terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of 
conditions specific to the individual licence under paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 
to the LGMPA or standard conditions applicable to all sex establishments, or 
particular types of sex establishments, prescribed by regulations made by the 
appropriate authority under paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 of the LGMPA.  
 

5.3 Paragraph 13 provides examples of the matters that standard conditions may 
address which include but are not restricted to:  

• The hours of opening and closing  

• Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments  

• The visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by  

• Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another  
 

5.4 The Council has adopted standard conditions that act as default conditions 
attached to SEV licenses.  The standard conditions are considered by the 
Licensing Authority to be appropriate for the type of venue but they provide 
leeway for some variation in consultation with Licensees.  The original 
standard conditions prepared by the Council are set out at Appendix 9. 

 
5.5 In consideration of the applications, a revised set of standard conditions to be 

attached to those licenses that the Committee determines to grant was 
prepared.  This set of revised conditions incorporated and mostly reflected the 
previous standard conditions but where relevant conditions were reviewed 
and amended in light of the applications and submissions made and 
Councillor comments and concerns.  The revised standard conditions were 
sent out to the applicants and their Legal Representatives for comment on 11 
May 2015 for the four existing operators.  In addition they were put to the 
applicant and his legal representatives for Charlie’s Angels at the hearing on 
12 May 2015.  The Revised Standard Conditions are set out at Appendix 10. 

Page 8



 
5.6 Minor matters, were raised in correspondenceon 18 May by Dadds Solicitors 

acting for White Swan and White’s Gentleman’s Club, whereby it was asked 
that the Committee consider the revised wording for condition 31 and delete 
the words “or clearly advertised discounts to the tariff” as a discount should 
not give rise to any misunderstanding or complaint.  Copies of the letters 
received from Dadds Solicitors are at Appendices 11 and 12. 
 

5.7 Matters were raised in respect of Nag's Head and Metropolisby Jeffrey 
Russell Grant Ltd on 15 May 2015 with Legal Services which the applicants 
had not had the opportunity to deal with before the Committee.   
 

5.8 There was correspondence in March and April between Licensing Officers 
and Julian Skeens of Jeffrey Russell Grant in respect of conditions for the 
Nag’s Head Public House.  Amendments to the Council’s standard Conditions 
were submitted as a tracked changes document and a clean copy of the 
same.  These changes can be summarised broadly as: 

• Removal of standard conditions 3 – 6 of the LBTH Standard Conditions for 
SEVs.  

• Amended wording from standard condition 11 on the basis that “a satisfactory 
level of decorum” was deemed by Jeffrey Russell Grant as being too 
subjective and imprecise. 

• Removal of standard condition 14 and substitution with Additional Condition 4. 

• When making the application (which was before the publication of the LBTH 
Standard Conditions for SEVs came out); 

• The proposal of additional conditions dealing with drink/dance tariffs. 
 
Further to on-going communication between officers and solicitors for the 
applicant, a revised set of conditions was offered whereby Jeffrey Russell 
Grant honed the conditions previously submitted.  These revised conditions 
for Nag’s Head are set out at Appendix 13 together a new proposed plan in 
draft form for approval.   
 

5.9 Gareth Hughes of Jeffrey Russell Grant acting for Metropolis asked that 
documents previously not before the Committee for Metropolis be considered 
in the determination of their clients’ applications.  The additional documents 
for Metropolis are set out at Appendix 14. 
 

5.10 Further/revised conditions have also been put forward in respect of Charlie’s 
Angels, following the Committee hearing of that matter.  A copy of 
correspondence sent in by Fletcher Day, the Legal Representative, isattached 
as Appendix 15. 

 
5.11 The LGMPA requires that applicants receive an opportunity of appearing 

before, and of being heard by, a Committee before their application is refused.  
In addition it has been determined by the Licensing Authority that where 
operators propose large-scale variations from the standard conditions 
representations in that regard must go before the Committee as being outside 
the delegated powers to settle the wording of conditions. 
 

Page 9



5.12 In light of paragraphs 5.6 to 5.10 above a further Extraordinary Committee 
Meetinghas been convened to consider their further representations before 
determination of the grant. 

 
 
6 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising directly from the report. 

However, there are possible cost implications if the Decision was appealed to 
the Magistrates’ Court, Crown Court or if a Judicial Review was lodged. 
Licence fees are expected to cover the cost of administration and compliance. 

 
 
7 LEGALCOMMENTS  
 

 
7.1 Legal Information is set out in the main body of this report.  The relevant law 

for the consideration of applications is set out in the ‘Legal Comments’ section 
of each of the four Licensing Committee reports made under the LGMPA for a 
SEV licence appended hereto.   
 

7.2 The decisions made by the Committee could be subject to an appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, as set out in paragraph 27 of Schedule 3 of LGMPA. 
 
 

 
8 BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

• The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

• The Policing and Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No. 1 and Transitional and 
Savings Provisions) (England) Order 2010 

• Home Office Guidance on Sexual Entertainment Venues 

• Tower Hamlets Council Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



9 APPENDICES 
 
 

Appendix 1 -  Terms of reference for Licensing Committee 
 

Appendix 2 - Membership of Licensing Committee 
 
Appendix 3 - Council report for consideration of the adoption of the SEV licensing 

regime 
 
Appendix 4 - Decision of Full Council Meeting – 26 March 2014 
 
Appendix 5 - Minutes of meeting held on 17 March 2015 re Nag’s Head 

 
Appendix 6 - Minutes of meeting held 14 April 2015 re White’s Gentleman’s Club 
 
Appendix 7 -Minutes of meeting held on 28 April 2015 
 
Appendix 8 -Minutes of meeting held on 12 May 2015 re Charlie’s Angels 
 
Appendix 9 - Original Standard Conditions 
 
Appendix 10 -Revised Standard Conditions 
 
Appendix 11 -Letter from Dadds Solicitors for White Swan 
 
Appendix 12 -Letter from Dadds Solicitors for White’s Gentleman’s Club  
 
Appendix 13 - Further documents for consideration for Nag’s Head Public House 
 
Appendix 14 -Further documents for consideration for Metropolis   
 
Appendix 15 -Further conditions for consideration for Charlie’s Angels 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
Terms of Reference for 
Licensing Committee  

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
Licensing Committee – Terms of Reference (Extract from the Council’s Constitution) 

 

Membership: Fifteen Members of the Council.   

Functions Delegation of 
Functions 

1. To consider and determine applications for the grant or variation 
of the following:  

 

a) Premises Licenses, Personal Licences, Temporary Events 
Notices and Club Premises Certificates pursuant to the 
Licensing Act 2003 where relevant representations have 
been received; 

b) Special treatment licenses in respect of premises within the 
borough where objections have been received; 

c) Gaming permits, as defined by Schedule 9 (6) of the Gaming 
Act 1968, where objections have been received; 

d) Small lotteries registration, where objections have been 
received; 

e) Competitive bidding licenses, where objections have been 
received; 

f) Pools promotion registration, where objections have been 
received. 

g) Granting “hypnotism waivers” in accordance with Council 
policy. 

h) Any other application which the Corporate Director, 
Environment and Culture considers should be referred to the 
Committee for determination 

 
2. To consider and determine applications for revocation and/or 
review of any licences which fall to be determined by the Committee 
in accordance with paragraph 1 a) to h) above 
 
3. To resolve not to issue a casino premises licence pursuant to 
section 166 Gambling Act 2005. 
 
4. To determine fees and charges for the issue, approval, consent, 
license, permit or other registration for functions for which the 
Committee has responsibility. 
 
5. To determine all aspects of licensing policy/procedure (excluding 
the determination of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy) 
and miscellaneous licensing matters, including the creation of Sub 
Committees for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
6.  To consider the Council’s statement of licensing policy. 

The Corporate 
Director, Communities, 
Localities and Culture 
(or any officer 
authorised by her/him) 
has the authority to 
consider and 
determine any 
applications for 
licenses not 
specifically reserved to 
the Licensing 
Committee by these 
terms of reference and 
all applications for 
licences where no 
objections have been 
received. 

Quorum:   
Three Members of the Committee  

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 
Membership of  

Licensing Committee  
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE  

(Fifteen Members of the Council) (No Deputies permitted) 
 

Labour Group (7) Tower Hamlets First Group (7)  
 

Conservative Group (1)  
 

 
Cllr Amy Whitelock Gibbs (Chair) 
Cllr Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Cllr Rajib Ahmed 
Cllr Amina Ali 
Cllr Rachel Blake 
Cllr Andrew Cregan 
Cllr Candida Ronald  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cllr Suluk Ahmed 
Cllr Mahbub Alam  
Cllr Shah Alam  
Cllr Gulam Kibria Choudhury 
Cllr Md. Mufti Miah 
Cllr Ansar Mustaquim 
Cllr Maium Miah 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cllr Peter Golds 
 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e

 1
9



P
a
g
e

 2
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 
Council report for  

consideration of the adoption 
of the SEV Licensing Regime  

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 
Decision of Full Council  
Meeting – 26 March 2014 

 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

 APPENDIX 4 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
DECISIONS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 26 MARCH 2014 

 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 

CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 
 
 
 
NOTE - AGENDA ORDER 
 
During the meeting the Council agreed to vary the order of business. To aid 
clarity, the Decision Sheet is presented in the order that the items originally 
appeared on the agenda. 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Shahed Ali, 
Fozol Miah and Helal Uddin. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
No declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests were made. 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
DECISION 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the Ordinary meeting of the Council held on 
22 January 2014 and the Budget Council meetings held on 26 February and 6 
March 2014 be confirmed as a correct record and the Speaker be authorised 
to sign them accordingly. 
 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services) 
 
 

4. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) FROM THE SPEAKER OF THE 
COUNCIL OR THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 
Please see minutes. 
 
 
 

Page 129



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
 

5. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
 
5.1 Petition regarding Kobi Nazrul School 
 
Mr Nurul Anim addressed the meeting on behalf of the petitioners and 
responded to questions from Members. The relevant Cabinet Member then 
responded to the matters raised in the petition. 
 
DECISION 
 
That the petition be referred to the Corporate Director, Education, Social Care 
and Wellbeing for a written response on any outstanding matters within 28 
days. 
 
(Action by: Robert McCulloch-Graham, Corporate Director, Education, Social 
Care and Wellbeing) 
 
 
5.2 Petition regarding illegal raves in Wapping 
 
Mr Stuart Madewell addressed the meeting on behalf of the petitioners and 
responded to questions from Members. The relevant Cabinet Member then 
responded to the matters raised in the petition. 
 
DECISION 
 
That the petition be referred to the Corporate Director, Development and 
Renewal for a written response on any outstanding matters within 28 days. 
 
(Action by: Aman Dalvi, Corporate Director, Development and Renewal) 
 
 
5.3 Petition regarding road safety and traffic calming in Devons Road 
 
The petitioners addressed the meeting on the matters set out in the petition 
and responded to questions from Members. The Deputy Mayor then 
responded to the matters raised. 
 
DECISION 
 
That the petition be referred to the Corporate Director, Communities, 
Localities and Culture for a written response on any outstanding matters 
within 28 days. 
 
(Action by: Stephen Halsey, Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and 
Culture) 
 
 
 

Page 130



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
The following questions and in each case (except where indicated) a 
supplementary question were put and were responded to by the relevant 
Executive Member:- 
 
6.1 Question from Mr Geoff Juden regarding a garden on Bishopsgate 

Goods Yard. 
 
6.2 Question from Ms Pawla Cottage regarding Columbia Market war 

memorial. 
 
6.3 Question from Ms Shuliy Akhter regarding Sex Establishment and 

Gambling issues (no supplementary question was put). 
 
6.4 Question from Mr Mahbub Alam regarding the cost of Mulberry Place 

(Town Hall). 
 
6.5 Question from Mr Brian Nicholson regarding Watts Grove. 
 
6.6 Question from Mr Stephen Beckett regarding the borough’s diversity. 
 
Questions 6.7 to 6.15 were not put due to lack of time. Written responses 
would be provided. 
 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services – to 
arrange written responses) 
 
 

7. MAYOR'S REPORT 
 
The Mayor made his report to the Council meeting. The Leader of the Majority 
Group and the Leader or Deputy Leader of each Minority Group then 
responded briefly to the Mayor’s report. 
 
 

8. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
The following questions and in each case (except where indicated) a 
supplementary question were put and were responded to by the relevant 
Executive Member or Chair:- 
 
8.1 Question from Councillor Abdal Ullah on the number of 18-24 year olds 

claiming JSA for over a year. 
 
8.2 Question from Councillor Zara Davis on reopening the Thames Path. 
 
8.3 Question from Councillor Judith Gardiner to the Speaker of the Council 

on the number of questions at Council answered by the Mayor. 

Page 131



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
8.4 Question from Councillor Kabir Ahmed on the Council’s ‘excellent’ 

rating for equalities. 
 
8.5 Question from Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman to the Chair of the 

Development Committee on the number of social homes secured by 
the Strategic Development Committee and Development Committee. 

 
8.6 Question from Councillor Peter Golds on the number of planned high 

rise buildings in the Borough. 
 
8.7 Question from Councillor Denise Jones on the regeneration impact of 

the London Olympics. 
 
Question 8.8 was not answered at the meeting and Questions 8.9 to 8.23 
were not put at the meeting due to lack of time. Written responses would be 
provided. 
 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services – to 
arrange written responses.) 
 
 

9. REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNCIL'S COMMITTEES 
 

9.1 Community Safety Partnership Plan 2013-16 
 
The Council considered the proposals of the Mayor and Executive for the 
Community Safety Plan 2013-16. 
 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed moved, and Councillor Oliur Rahman seconded, the 
recommendation as set out in the report. 
 
DECISION 
 
To approve the Community Safety Partnership Plan 2013-16 (attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report) and the priorities set out within it. 
 
(Action by: Stephen Halsey, Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and 
Culture) 
 
 

9.2 Sexual Entertainment Venues Licensing Regime, Policing and Crime Act 
2009 
 
The Council considered the report of the Head of Consumer and Business 
Regulations into the proposal to adopt the legislative scheme for the control of 
lap dancing and striptease premises in Tower Hamlets. 
 
Further correspondence from legal representatives of local businesses was 
tabled along with the response of the Council’s legal adviser. 
 

Page 132



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Councillor Carli Harper-Penman moved, and Councillor Ann Jackson 
seconded, the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
With the agreement of the Speaker, two representatives of local businesses 
addressed the meeting.   
 
DECISION 
 

1. To agree that it is appropriate to reconsider whether to adopt Schedule 
3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009. 

 
2. To resolve that Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the Policing and 
Crime Act 2009 shall apply in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
area and which shall come into force on 1st June 2014. 

 
3. To agree the proposed standard conditions in Appendix 2 and to also 

agree the fee structure in Appendix 3 to the report. 
 

4. To note that the policy in Appendix 1 to the report, which will apply on 
the application of Schedule 3 in Tower Hamlets, and which supports 
continued operation of existing premises, including the White Swan. 
 

(Action by: Stephen Halsey, Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and 
Culture) 
 
 

9.3 Free School Meals for Primary Age Pupils - Virement Proposal 
 
The Council considered the report of the Acting Corporate Director, 
Resources on a proposed virement in connection with the Mayor’s Executive 
Decision to introduce a local scheme for free schools meals for all primary 
age pupils. 
 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury moved, and Councillor Oliur Rahman seconded, 
the recommendation as set out in the report. 
 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs moved, and Councillor Sirajul Islam seconded, a 
tabled amendment to the recommendation. Following debate the amendment 
was put to the vote and was agreed.  The substantive motion as amended 
was then put to the vote and was agreed.    
 
DECISION 
 
This Council notes: 
 

• There were NO proposals for Free School Meals in the Mayor’s original 
2014/15 Budget, in fact, in that Budget the Mayor removed the funding 
already allocated for Free School Meals. 

 

Page 133



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

• The Labour Group’s Budget amendment was the only one which 
contained a pledge for Free School Meals. 

 

• Labour’s Budget amendment would have fully funded Free School 
Meals on a sustainable basis and Labour’s candidate for Mayor of 
Tower Hamlets, John Biggs, has pledged to ensure that Free School 
Meals for all primary school pupils is a priority of his administration. 

 

• After removing funding from his original Budget, the Mayor refused to 
accept Labour’s Free School Meals proposal and on 6th March his 
supporters voted to block it. 

 
This Council Further notes: 
 

• The Mayor opposed Labour’s Free School Meals plan for purely 
political reasons. 

 

• The Mayor promised to bring a fully funded proposal back to Council 
for two full academic years. 

 

• The Mayor has broken his promise as the actual proposals before 
Council are not only for one year only, but are not funded at all. 

 

• The proposed virement is not only totally unfunded, but it raids the 
Council’s emergency reserves which will require over £2.5m in 
additional service cuts in future years. 

 
This Council believes: 
 

• If the Mayor wanted to invest in Free School Meals he would have 
included it in his original Budget rather than cutting the already 
allocated funding. 

 

• Labour’s campaign for Free School Meals has attracted widespread 
support and the Mayor is now desperately trying to save face in light of 
his opposition to Labour’s plans. 

 

• Whilst we welcome the Mayor’s conversion to support Free School 
Meals, it is clear that he has absolutely no idea how to fund this and he 
is irresponsibly trying to buy his way out of the problem. 

 

• The Mayor’s plan to provide skills training for women to work in the 
healthcare sector could easily be achieved by using the power of the 
Mayor’s office to work with business, third sector and NHS partners to 
deliver the project on a sustainable basis and not just as a one off. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

This Council further believes: 
 

• Budget setting is a matter for Full Council and that any attempts by the 
Executive to circumvent this process would be unlawful, including 
through cumulative virements below the £1m threshold; 

 

• This Mayor is endangering the long term financial health of this council 
with his desperate actions and that it is the responsibility of the council 
and its elected members to protect tax payers money from this abuse; 

 

• The financial virement protections in the constitution have been agreed 
by full council and it is full council that should provide clarity on their 
application; 

 
This Council resolves to amend the report Recommendations to: 
 
Delete the current bullet point and replace with: 
 

• In order to avoid the use of further reserves, which would result in 
further cuts to services in later years, we will reduce the need to call on 
reserves over the course of the scheme by granting the mayor the 
power to implement the following virements: 

 
o A virement of £1.3m from the Healthcare employment project 
o Virements of £296,000 and £30,000 from the budgets for 

mayoral advisors and the mayoral car respectively 
o A virement to ringfence £1,050,000 from the efficiencies and any 

additional funding resulting from the 2015/16 public health grant. 
 

Virement Funding source Change 

2015/16 Public Health Grant funding £1,050,000 

Healthcare employment project allocation £1,300,000 

Mayoral car allocation £30,000 

Cut the Chief Executives cost for mayoral 
advisors/consultants allocation 

£296,000 
 

TOTAL: £2,675,000 

 

• To instruct officers to bring a draft amendment to the constitution to the 
2014 AGM meeting which would act to prevent the Executive from 
issuing cumulative smaller virements to one budget head which would 
otherwise exceed the £1m limit requiring approval by Council. 

 

• In the interim, to add a paragraph to the section of the Council’s 
constitution on virements reading: 

 
“Virements for the same budget head, project or substantively similar purpose 
which are below the £1m threshold should not cumulatively (over a period of 
three months) exceed the £1m limit without the approval of Council.” 
 

Page 135



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

• To highlight to all officers responsible for the interpretation and 
application of the Constitution that it is Council’s view that using 
cumulative virements which exceed the £1m marker for reporting to 
Council intentionally breaches the spirit of the Constitution and that 
from henceforth these should be prevented as is the explicit will of the 
council. 

 
(Action by: Chris Holme, Acting Corporate Director, Resources; and 
Meic Sullivan-Gould, Interim Monitoring Officer) 
 
 

9.4 Localism Act 2011 - Pay Policy Statement 2014-15 
 
Council considered the reference from the Human Resources Committee on 
the Pay Policy Statement 2014/15. 
 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs moved, and Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman seconded, 
the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
DECISION 
 
1 To adopt the authority’s Pay Policy Statement for the year 1 April 2014 to 

31 March 2015 as recommended by the Human Resources Committee 
and presented at Appendix 1 to the Human Resources Committee report. 
 

2 To agree that if any minor changes to the 2014/15 policy statement are 
required as a result of future government guidance, these amendments be 
delegated to the Head of Paid Service after consultation with the Service 
Head (HR and WD), the Chair of the Human Resources Committee and 
the Monitoring Officer. Should any fundamental changes be required, then 
the Pay Policy Statement be referred back to the Human Resources 
Committee for consideration. 

 
(Action by: Simon Kilbey, Service Head, Human Resources and Workforce 
Development) 
 
 

9.5 Annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Council considered the Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman moved, and Councillor Rachael Saunders 
seconded, the recommendation as set out in the report. 
 
DECISION 
 
That the Council notes the annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for 2013-14. 
 
(Action by: Louise Russell, Service Head, Corporate Strategy and Equality) 

Page 136



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

 
 

9.6 Executive Mayor's Car 
 
Council considered the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee into 
the use of the Executive Mayor’s Car. 
 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman moved, and Councillor Rachael Saunders 
seconded, the recommendation as set out in the report. 
 
DECISION 
 
To agree the reference report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
its recommendations. 
 
 

10. TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND QUESTIONS ON JOINT 
ARRANGEMENTS/EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS (IF ANY) 
 
There was no business under this heading. 
 
 

11. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11.1 Review of proportionality and allocation of places on committees 
 
Council considered the report of the Service Head, Democratic Services, on 
the review of proportionality and allocation of places on Committees and 
Panels of the Council. 
 
DECISION 
 

1. That the review of proportionality at paragraph 3 of the report be noted 
and the Council agree the unchanged allocation of seats on 
committees and panels established for the remainder of the Municipal 
Year 2013/14 as set out at paragraph 4.2 of the report. 
 

2. That Members and deputies be appointed to serve on those 
committees and panels in accordance with nominations from the 
political groups to be notified to the Service Head, Democratic 
Services. 
 

3. That the Service Head, Democratic Services be authorised to approve 
the appointment of ungrouped Councillors to any committee places not 
allocated by the Council to a political group, after consultation with 
those Councillors and the Speaker of the Council.  

 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services) 
 
 
 

Page 137



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

10 

 
11.2 Calendar of Meetings 2014/15 

 
Council considered the report of the Service Head, Democratic Services on 
the proposed calendar of Council and Committee meetings for 2014/15. 
 
DECISION 
 
To approve the proposed calendar of meetings for the municipal year 2014/15 
as set out at Appendix A to the report. 
 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services) 
 
 

11.3 Scheme of Members' Allowances 2014/15 
 
Council considered the report of the Service Head, Democratic Services on 
the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2014/15.  
 
DECISION 
 
To adopt the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Members’ Allowances 
Scheme 2014 as set out at Appendix A to the report. 
 
(Action by: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services) 
 
 

11.4 Investigation into Old Poplar Town Hall - update 
 
Council considered the update presented in the agenda on the Investigation 
into Old Poplar Town Hall. 
 
DECISION 
 
To note the update. 
 
(Action by: Chris Holme, Acting Corporate Director, Resources; and Meic 
Sullivan-Gould, Interim Monitoring Officer) 
 
 

12. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
12.1 Motion regarding Lutfur Rahman’s legacy of failure 
 
Councillor Sirajul Islam moved, and Councillor Rachael Saunders seconded, 
the motion as printed in the agenda. 
 
The motion was put to the vote and was agreed. 
 
 
 

Page 138



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

11 

DECISION 
 
This Council notes: 
 

- That under Lutfur Rahman’s leadership: 
 
Jobs 
 

- The number of people long-term unemployed in the borough has risen 
23%  

- The number of young people aged 18-24 who are long-term 
unemployed in the borough has more than doubled. (Up 111%) 

- During the Olympics there was little discernable impact in terms of the 
number of young people employed in the borough. 

 
Cleaner Streets 
 

- Residents have reported 24,000 bins as uncollected.  
- The introduction of charges for bulk waste collections led to 7,000 

fewer bulk collections.  
- Street cleaning was cut to only two days a week 

 
Crime and ASB 
 

- Crime is up 1.4% since Lutfur Rahman came to power. 
- Over the same period crime in neighbouring in Newham is down 8% 

and in Barking and Dagenham it is down 10%. 
- 20,000 reports of Anti-Social behaviour last year 
- Tower Hamlets has the second highest levels of anti-social behaviour 

in London. 
- Between October 2009 and September 2012 robberies were up 50%, 

knife crime was up 49% 
- In the 2013 Annual Residents Survey 41% of people said crime was 

one of their top three concerns, this was the biggest overall concern 
from residents. 

 
Housing 
 

- Lutfur Rahman has actually SOLD more Council homes than he has 
built  

o 15 built since Lutfur Rahman came to power 
o 46 homes sold off under right to buy 
o 14 homes sold off through Lutfur Rahman’s asset stripping 

- There are over 20,000 families on the borough’s housing waiting list 
- Plans were drawn up to ship up to 500 families out of London this year. 
- 94 vulnerable families have unlawfully been placed in ‘temporary’ 

accommodation for more than 6 weeks. 
- Only 27 of almost 700 homes on the Olympic Park were allocated to 

Tower Hamlets families 
 
 

Page 139



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

12 

Cost of Living 
 

- 14,000 families have been hit by the Government’s Benefit Cap. 
- Lutfur Rahman cut the borough’s stretched advice centres to the bone 

with cuts in their grants of up to 50% 
- The cost of privately renting in Tower Hamlets now takes up 60% of the 

average household income. 
 

Schools 
 

- 30% of secondary school children missed out on their first preference 
school last year. 157 children didn’t get any of their 6 preferences. 

- The provision of school places varies significantly between areas. For 
example in Limehouse, last year only 54% of students got a first 
preference Secondary School place. 

- The school place crisis has been ignored.  
 
Council Finance 
 

- The Council has made no progress on invest to save strategies. 
- The Council has developed a budget gap of £80m in coming years. 
- Over £18m has been spent on redundancy payments with countless 

more on out of court ‘settlements’ 
 
Waste 
 

- £42,000 a year wasted on a vanity chauffeur driven Mercedes 
- £296,000 a year wasted on ‘mayoral advisors’ 
- Hundreds of thousands wasted on unnecessary publicity  

 
Contempt 
 

- Residents have had their questions, petitions and expectations 
ignored.  

- Councillors were removed from community organisations with their 
seats left vacant. 

- A Commonwealth minister was banned from visiting the Town Hall 
during the Olympics  

 
This Council Believes: 
 

- Tower Hamlets is a great place to live and can do so much better than 
this.  
 

- People feel totally let down by Lutfur Rahman’s out of touch, divisive 
and secretive administration and that a change is needed. 
 

- That the current Mayor is too weak to face up to the real challenges 
facing this council and the people who live in our borough. 
 

- That John Biggs is the man to make that change. 

Page 140



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

13 

 
This Council resolves: 
 

- To condemn Lutfur Rahman for his four years of failure. 
 
 
12.3 Motion regarding supporting building of the Columbia Market War 
Memorial 
 
Councillor John Pierce moved, and Councillor M.A. Mukit M.B.E. seconded 
the motion as printed in the agenda. 
 
During debate Councillor John Pierce accepted an amendment proposed by 
Councillor Kabir Ahmed to add, under ‘This Council Resolves’,:- “To call on 
the Executive to provide a suitable site within the Sivill House Rose Garden 
for this memorial”. 
 
The motion, as amended, was put to the vote and was agreed. 
 
DECISION 
 
This Council Notes: 
 
On the first night of the Blitz, 7th September 1940 a German bomb entered 
the ventilation shaft of the air raid shelter situated under the Great Hall of 
Columbia Market which had a glass roof which caused mass devastation and 
killed at least 51 people. 
 
This Council believes:  
 
This tragedy should be commemorated and a fitting memorial should be 
erected near the site of the Great Hall to remember the 51 people who lost 
their lives in this tragedy.    
 
This Council Resolves: 
 
To commemorate the air raid on Columbia Market, Columbia Road, and to 
support the Columbia Market War Memorial Group with building of the 
Columbia Market War Memorial.  
 
To call on the Executive to provide a suitable site within the Sivill House Rose 
Garden for this memorial. 
 
(Action by:  Aman Dalvi, Corporate Director, Development and Renewal) 
 
 
Motions 12.2 and 12.4 – 12.11 were not considered due to lack of time.   
 
The Council agreed to suspend Procedure Rule 13.1 to enable an additional, 
urgent motion to be included on the agenda regarding Former Crown Estate 

Page 141



COUNCIL, 26/03/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

14 

Tenants.  However this urgent motion was also not considered due to lack of 
time.  
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 11.03 p.m. 
 
 
 

Page 142



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 

 
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary 
Licensing Committee meeting 

held on 17
th

 March 2015 
 

Application for a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence 
for the Nags Head, 17-19 

Whitechapel Road, London, E1 
1DU 

 

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 17/03/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 17 MARCH 2015 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 

Councillor Andrew Cregan (Chair) 

  
Councillor Suluk Ahmed 
Councillor Mahbub Alam 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim 

 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
None   

 
Apologies  

 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Shah Alam 
Councillor Amina Ali 
Councillor Rachel Blake 
Councillor Amy Whitelock Gibbs 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Md. Maium Miah 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah 
Councillor Candida Ronald 

 
Others Present: 
 
Julian Skeens – (Legal Representative) 
Luke Elford – (Legal Representative) 
Manpal Singh – (Owner/Applicant)  
Tattian Ferreria Silva Lima – (Performer) 
Angie Ribeiro Boccato  – (Performer) 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Mohshin Ali – (Senior Licensing Officer) 
Leo Charalambides 
Andrew Heron 

– (Legal Advisor) 
– (Licensing Officer, Licensing 

Department) 
John McCrohan – (Trading Standards & Licensing 

Manager) 

Page 145



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 17/03/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer, 
Democratic Services) 

 
 
In the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair, Ms Simmi Yesmin, Democratic 
Services welcomed everyone to the meeting and sought nominations for 
Election of Chair for the meeting.  
 
Councillor Mahbub Alam nominated Councillor Andrew Cregan for Chair of 
the Extraordinary Licensing Committee.  
 
Councillor Muhammed Ansar Mustaquim and Councillor Suluk Ahmed 
seconded the nomination.  
 
RESOLVED  
 
Councillor Andrew Cregan be elected Chair for this meeting of the 
Extraordinary Licensing Committee.   
 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interests made.  
 
 

2. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Chair announced the procedure of the meeting, which was noted by the 
Committee.  
 
 
 

3. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

3.1 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for the Nags 
Head, 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DU  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Mohshin Ali, Licensing Officer introduced the 
report which detailed an application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by reg 47 (4), Provisions of Services 
Regulations 2009 ‘the service regulations’) and the Policing and Crime Act 
2009 for The Nags Head, 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DU. 
 
Mr Ali referred to the appendices in the report and stated where the relevant 
documents were contained in the agenda. It was also noted that the report 
author and the Officer who undertook the inspection of the premises was 
present at the meeting and was available to answer any questions.  
 

Page 146



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 17/03/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

At the request of the Chair, Mr Julian Skeens, Applicant’s Legal 
Representative explained that he would go through sections of the report and 
address the concerns raised.  
 
He explained that para 3.3 of the report made reference to the existing licence 
being granted in 2005, he pointed out that this was incorrect and that the 
Applicant’s father had originally acquired the premises in 1983 and the 
premises has had a licence for Public Entertainment since 1986, which 
confirmed the fact that the Applicant was an experienced operator. Mr Skeens 
asked Members to note the photographs of the premises which were 
contained in the supplemental agenda pack.  
 
In relation to para 4.1of the report, Mr Skeens explained that under the 
existing licence there was no requirement for a CCTV camera system, 
however the Applicant still operated CCTV cameras on the premises. He 
further explained that during a visit by the Licensing Officer, concerns were 
raised in terms of the number of CCTV cameras at the premises, within two 
days of the visit the Applicant had additional digital cameras installed. It was 
noted that the CCTV images could also be viewed and monitored via the 
Applicant’s mobile phone which insured an extra level of supervision at all 
times. Mr Skeen then referred to page 145 of the agenda which detailed a 
map of the premises and the points where the additional CCTV cameras were 
located.    
 
It was agreed that the Applicant was happy for the Licensing Officer to revisit 
the premises to check that the CCTV camera system met all the Council 
requirements.  
 
Mr Skeens then referred to para 6.0 of the report and it was agreed that the 
Licensing Officer and the Applicant’s Legal Representative would consult and 
decide upon the wordings of the conditions. It was also noted that Members of 
the Licensing Committee had the discretion to modify conditions or add 
appropriate conditions.  
 
It was also noted that a comprehensive dance tariff and drinks price list had 
been supplied and copies of the poster would be displayed in all dedicated 
areas of the premises. These were also included in the supporting 
documents.  
 
Mr Skeens then went through the assessment and information for the vicinity, 
highlighting the fact there were no schools in close proximity and the area had 
predominately commercial licensed properties. Mr Skeen reemphasised the 
fact that the premises had been trading since 1986 without having any 
complaints or reported incidents.   
 
It was noted that the consultation process was undertaken and every premise 
in a 50 meters radius, all responsible authorities and Ward Councillors were 
given notice of the application. There had been no objections from 
responsible authorities or residents except for the one.  
 

Page 147



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 17/03/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

Mr Skeens referred to the resident’s objection and explained that there had 
been no representation from the Police or environmental health and therefore 
unable to link crime and disorder and noise nuisance to the premises. He 
concluded that that there were no problems at the premises and management 
have never received any complaints.   
 
Mr Skeens, referred to the witness statements of Mr Manpal Singh, Applicant, 
Ms Angie Riberio Boccato, Performer, and Ms Tattiana Ferreria Silva Lima, 
Performer on pages 21-24 of the supplemental agenda. Upon questioning, all 
three, accepted the witness statements were a correct record.  
 
It was noted that the objector was not present at the meeting but Members 
would considered and note the objections raised.   
 
In response to questions from Members the following was noted; 
 

- That allegations about women being approached by customers 
inappropriately were not correct, Mr Skeens said that there had been 
no complaints from anyone and had never been raised before and 
therefore did not accept this. However, if this was to ever happen the 
customer would not be allowed entry to the premises. 

- That all premises in a 50 meter radius were notified of the application. 
- That there was no residential accommodation above the premises or 

on the main road as they were primarily used for commercial purposes. 
However, there were residential developments accessed from Old 
Montague Street and Green Dragon Yard.  

- That there had only been one incident 2 years ago when police were 
called to the premises when a customer was not allowed entry.  

- Concerns were raised as to the close proximity of the premises to the 
East London Mosque, Synagogue and the Whitechapel Art Gallery, 
Officers informed Members that these places of worship and culture 
were over 100 meters away from the premises.  

- Concerns were raised in relation to the growth in youth population in 
the area and risks of exportation and women trafficking, Mr Skeen 
explained that this would not be a problem as the Police often prefer 
this type of premises as customers arrive and leave the premises and 
area discreetly.  

- That anti-social behaviour prevention methods included; CCTV 
cameras, staff monitoring and restricting entry to the premises.  

- That item 1, of the Performers Welfare Policy could be included as a 
condition on the licence to address any concerns of women trafficking.  

- Allegations of school children being insulted was disputed as this had 
never been raised, there had been no complaints and not witnessed. 

- That the premises operated zero tolerance to drugs policy, there had 
been no incidents, no complaints and the Applicant gets along with all 
the neighbours. 

- That the Authority had been regulating this style of premises since 
1986 without any objection.  

- That the presence of the premises did not impact on the community as 
the front of the premises was a blank façade, with just the signage on 

Page 148



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 17/03/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

the top of the premises displaying ‘The Nags Head’ and there were no 
notices outside the premises enticing customers.  

- Posters and tariffs were inside the premises and not visible from 
outside, a customer would have to enter the premises to see posters 
etc. and if they were not interested they could leave without going 
further into the premises.  

- That there was a door man outside the premises and passers-by often 
felt safe walking past as there was a presence of safety.  

- That the premise was monitored via CCTV cameras and there were 
Council CCTV camera right outside the premises too.  

- That there were no objections from responsible authorities or ward 
councillors.  

- That the report categorised the area as predominately commercial. 
- That no moral objection were valid 
- That the style of entertainment was lawful and licensable.  
- That the Applicant was a good operator and had a lot of experience in 

running this type of venue hence the lack of objections received.  
- That the Applicant did not accept that the premise was on a faith based 

route as it was more commercial. The Licensing Officer also confirmed 
that the route was predominantly commercial. 

 
In summation Mr Skeens stated that all issues raised had been explained in 
detail, and that Tower Hamlets had been issuing the licence for the premises 
since 1986 without any objections. It was noted that there were conditions on 
the licence and the Applicant was happy to accept the standard conditions 
proposed by the Licensing Officer. Mr Skeens concluded by stating that the 
operator was very experienced and was respectable to all faith cultures.  
 
The Chair thanked everyone for attending and contributions to the meetings 
and informed everyone that the decision will be notified to the Applicant once 
all the applications in this first round have been considered.  
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.30 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Andrew Cregan 
Licensing Committee 

 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX 6 

 
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary 
Licensing Committee meeting 

held on 14
th

 April 2015 
 
 

Application for a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for 
Whites Gentleman’s Club, 32-38 
Leman Street, London, E1 8EW 

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 14 APRIL 2015 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 

  

Councillor Peter Golds (Vice-Chair in Chair) 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah 
Councillor Candida Ronald 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
 None  

 
Apologies  

 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Mahbub Alam 
Councillor Amina Ali 
Councillor Rachel Blake 
Councillor Andrew Cregan 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim 
Councillor Amy Whitelock-Gibbs 
 
Others Present: 
 
Philip Kolvin – (Item 2.1) 
David Dadds 
David Stewart  
Mary Dengler 
Martin Dengler 
Triona O’Keeffe  

– (Item 2.1) 
– (Item 2.1)  
– (Local Resident) 
– (Local Resident) 
– (Local Resident) 

 
Officers Present: 
 
 
Kathy Driver – (Principal Licensing Officer) 
Andrew Heron – (Licensing Officer, Licensing 

Department) 
John McCrohan – (Trading Standards & Licensing 

Manager) 

Page 153



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Gurwinder Olive – (Senior Lawyer, Legal Services) 
Simmi Yesmin 
 
David Graham  
Mark Greaves 

– (Senior Committee Officer, 
Democratic Services) 

– (Counsel – Advisor to the Committee) 
– (Legal Observer) 

 
 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and announced the procedure 
of the meeting, which was noted by the Committee. The Chair enquired how 
long Mr Kolvin required to present his case and stated that he would allow the 
residents the same amount of time.  Mr Kolvin and the residents indicated that 
they were content with the procedure. 
 
 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made.  
 
 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

2.1 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Whites 
Gentleman's Club, 32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Licensing Officer introduced the 
report which detailed the application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) for Whites Gentleman’s Club, 32-38 
Leman Street, London E1 8EW.  
 
Ms Driver explained that the premises currently held a licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003 that permits sexual entertainment. It was noted that the 
hours applied for were the same hours as the current premises licence 
however it was noted that the premises opened at 5pm despite having a 
licence to trade from 12noon. Ms Driver explained that the Applicant had met 
the advertising/notice requirements, and all objections were contained in the 
agenda and additional documents were contained in the supplemental 
agenda.  
 
It was noted that the Licensing Officer who undertook the inspection of the 
Premises sought clarification on pricing and CCTV cameras and its coverage 
of the premises. Mr Driver explained that the details on complaints and 
enforcement history were jointly received by the Licensing Services and 
Trading Standards.  
 
Ms Driver referred to the appendices in the report and stated where the 
relevant documents were contained in the agenda. It was also noted that the 

Page 154



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

report author and officer who undertook the inspection of the premises was 
present at the meeting and was available to answer any questions.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Philip Kolvin, Applicant’s Legal Representative 
explained that he acknowledged the range of views from interested parties 
and as a result had offered extended conditions to help alleviate concerns. He 
explained that it was a small venue with a maximum of 80 persons at the 
premises at any one time. He stated that there were always 8 SIA security 
staff on the premises, increasing to 10 during peak times, so that together 
with bar staff there were approximately 16 members of staff on the premises 
at each time, with a ratio of at most 1 staff member per 5 customers which he 
said allowed for good supervision of performers and customers.  
 
Mr Kolvin stated that the Applicant was happy to accept the standard 
conditions set by the Council which were set out on page 72 of the agenda.  
Mr Kolvin explained that the two matters which arose from the inspection 
meeting by the Licensing Officer were in relation to providing further CCTV 
cameras or complete coverage, which had now been completed.  He stated 
that there was complete coverage of the area where regulated entertainment 
is provided and that all performers would now know that their actions were 
being recorded. He stated that this was a guarantee hat the premises will be 
run in a suitable manner.  Officers from Responsible Authorities can also 
access this footage at any time. The map of the premises, including the 
location of CCTV Cameras was noted.   
 
Mr Kolvin explained that high sums were expended at the premises, 90% of 
the customers were city workers and they had 27,000 VISA transactions last 
year. He accepted that some transactions were queried but said that when 
customers were shown CCTV footage of the incidents they withdrew 
allegations.  
 
It was noted that concerns were raised in terms of transparency, and Mr 
Kolvin explained that the Applicant having consulted with Trading Standards 
had made an agreement that all prices for dances would be fixed and the 
price list would be displayed in prominent places within the premises. His 
client would end the system of dancers negotiating charges orally which he 
said was a recipe for misunderstandings.  All tariffs would be posted.  It was 
also agreed that all VIP rooms will be hired out by a written agreement form 
which would make it clear what the charges were, requiring signature by the 
customer and countersignature by a Manager. Mr Kolvin further stated that 
the transactions would be made in an area roped off at the end of the bar, 
which would be well lit and have CCTV cameras. He hoped that this would 
leave no room for any misunderstandings, and stated that the applicants were 
grateful to Trading Standards for bringing it to their attention.  
 
Mr Kolvin moved on to address the external impact on the locality. He 
explained that it was not a moral debate and moral issues/concerns were not 
relevant under the legislation. He referred Members to page 121 of the report 
which detailed the Council’s Policy on SEVs and highlighted the reference on 
the impact of the premises on the character of the locality and other uses in 

Page 155



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

the vicinity. He stated that any sensibly run premises would take account of 
sensitivities in the vicinity. 
 
It was said that the Applicants were volunteering further controls to diminish 
the impact.  Mr Kolvin then said that he would describe venues in othe places 
and what they were able to et away with doing.  He then gave a list of 
practices that other SEV venues did but they would not be doing, namely: 
 

- There would be  no leafleting in the vicinity for business  
-  No branded transportation e.g. limousines 
-  Not advertising on billboards around the locality 
- No visibility into the premises  
- No visible red, neon, pink or flashing lighting  
- No explicit imagery or wording of sexual connotation such as ;strip’ or 

‘nude’ 
- Door staff outside the premises, so that nobody wanders in without 

knowing what they were going into, but who look like those that can be 
seen outside clubs or bars 

- Dancers do not gather outside the front of the premises to drum up 
custom (the smoking area is at the back) 

- Minicabs would be ordered , so customers discreetly leave the 
premises rather than misbehaving i the locality.  

- There is no noise breakout. 
 
He stated that the level of objection overall was low. There were no objections 
from Responsible Authorities with no adverse comments from local business, 
Offices, Landlords, Religious or Educational institutions.  
 
He explained that the ward population was 14,940 and that objections were 
from one resident from the immediate area, and a proforma letter from 13 
pupils’ parents (seven sets) out of 222 pupils at the nearby English Martyrs  
School – one of whom described themselves as  living in Wapping and not in 
close proximity to the premises.  The premises had been trading in the area 
for around 10 years. He mentioned that some objections made reference to 
prostitution and drugs in the area and said that this had not been mentioned 
by the Police or evidenced in any way.    
 
He then referred to the objection from the Ward Councillors whose concerns 
were that the venue may impact on the area but it was to be noted that the 
premises already exists and they had not mentioned that it was having any 
impacts at the moment. Mr Kovin said that the premises were not holding up 
any development.  There was also reference to Harry Goslin Primary School 
but it was to be noted that this was some way off, and there had been no 
complaints from the school or parents of the school children.  
 
Mr Kolvin stated that Council Officer themselves say that the area is a mix of 
commercial and residential accommodation, with the area within 100 metres 
being assessed to be of commercial character.  There was a busy A-road with 
‘red routes’. It was not a quiet residential side street.  He emphasised that no 
public or private sector organisations have made objections but merely a 
small minority of residents.  

Page 156



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
In conclusion Mr Kolvin referred to concerns raised in relation to operating 
during school time or when children were walking home from school.  He 
stated that the school closes at 3.15pm.  The club current opens at 4pm.  As a 
gesture the Applicant would delay opening time to 5pm to separate customers 
from school children and allow for after-school clubs. Mr Kolvin explained that 
there were no complaints about the exterior of the premises but stated that 
the Applicant would voluntarily remove imagery of the female silhouette and 
the word ‘Gentlemen’s’ from the signage outside the premises. He stated that 
the licensed activities were not going to be seen  and there woud be no 
impact. He hoped that this would be workable for at least one year.  Mr Kolvin 
concluded at just after 7.15pm. 
 
At the request of the Chair, Dr Mary Dengler, local resident explained that she 
has been a local resident for a considerable amount of time even before the 
opening of White’s. She explained that she had knowledge of the area, and 
knowledge of planning and geography. She explained that the local school 
didn’t receive notification about the application and that due to holidays and 
timings other parents had not been notified and were unable to attend. She 
explained that she has noticed prostitution on the streets which was not there 
before the premises opened. She explained that she uses a different route 
home to avoid confronting prostitutes and drug takers on the streets that she 
would otherwise encounter if she walked from Aldgate East. Dr Dengler 
explained that when the premises first got their licence there were not many 
residents however the demography had now changed and it was now a more 
residential area.  The borough had in her view been improving with an 
increase in residents, services and amenities.  The development plan for 
Tower Hamlets was seeking to improve the character, residential quality and 
environment.  There had already been a shift towards residential character 
and this would continue as new buildings were completed. 
 
Dr Dengler raised concerns that were more low budget hotels opening nearby 
which could attract large gatherings etc. It was noted that Dr Dengler had two 
school aged children and avoided walking past the premises. It was further 
noted that school clubs finished at 6pm and therefore school children were 
still in the area after 5pm. In her opinion, the concession to open at 5pm was 
insufficient. Children often walked home on their own. 
 
Members then heard from Ms Triona O’Keeffe who again was a parent of 
child who attended the English Martyrs School and lived in Wapping. She 
explained that her objection was based on location as the premises was 
adjacent to a school, so children would be going past the premises to and 
from school, during school trips, and after school clubs. She explained that 
she is questioned by her son about the premises and feels it inappropriate to 
explain when walking past what type of establishment the premises is. In her 
view, the immediate area was and should be focused on education.  She 
added that it had become more of a residential area than a commercial area 
which it first was. There were more students in the area.  Clubs like White’s 
could operate more effectively in other areas, in her view.  Ms O’Keeffe stated 
that the delay in opening hours and changes to the facade were positive, 
however the location was not appropriate for this type of venue.  

Page 157



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

 
Lastly Members heard from Mr Martin Dengler, a long-time resident and 
parent of school children who attended the English Martyrs School. He stated 
that the licence would impact on the local character of the area, and stated 
that the character of the local area had undeniably changed since the Whites 
first opened and the area was more of a residential area. He stated that in his 
experience one of the first things that people he met tell him is that a strip club 
is located in the area, rather that for instance mentioning the Tube 
improvements.  He stated that applying to open from midday would double the 
current opening hours.  He explained that the premises were immediately 
identifiable and were inconsistent with the council’s nil policy on SEV licences. 
He then said that lack of objection from the local School was due to the fact 
that they had not been made aware of the application.   Mr Dengler also 
stated that the signage had actually increased in prominence since the 
premises had opened. 
 
Mr Graham and Ms Driver pointed out that local residents living within 50m of 
the premises were consulted, as stated at paragraph 13.1 of the committee 
report, and Ms Driver said that the school was not in a 50m radius.  
 
In response to questions from Members the following was noted; 
 

- That the application plan showed only the area within the red line as 
being licensed but that it was intended for the whole premises to be 
licensed with the licensable entertainment activities taking place only 
within the red line. 

- That all regulated entertainment would have CCTV coverage  
- That the applicant was happy to add CCTV cameras in the lobby 

areas. 
- That the condition which makes reference to dancers being fully 

clothed should include covering of breasts and genitalia. 
- That the word Gentleman’s and the silhouette of a women would be 

removed from the front signage.  
- That the boards detailing the reviews of the premises would also be 

taken off the windows and therefore there would only be a blank façade 
external to the premises with just the words ‘White’s Club’ and nohing 
else showing.   

- That the premises did not advertise in Tower Hamlets and nor would it 
advertise in the City of London.  It would advertise only on the website. 

- That the Applicant has been managing the premises since 2009 
- That there were CCTV cameras in all VIP rooms  
- There were no doors preventing access to the VIP rooms except for 

‘studio 54’ room, which had a one-way glass mirror which can be seen 
through by security staff.  

- That there were 6 SIA Security Staff who monitor the VIP rooms and 
cubicles etc.  

- That the school was within 100 metres of the premises but under the 
Policy consultation only needed to be undertaken 50 metres of the 
premises.  There was also a notice outside the premise, there were 
public notices and newspaper adverts giving notification of the 
application. 

Page 158



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

- That Dr Dengler had asserted that with the new hotels being opened, 
customers could arrange to meet with dancers afterwards in hotels. 

- Dr Dengler felt threatened by street prostitutes.  The area was trying to 
attract property investment and the club would inhibit the 
transformation of the area.  In her view, the premises were no longer 
aligned with the character of the neighbourhood anymore and were a 
blight. 

- That residents, had not complained before but are doing so now as 
circumstances have now changed and they were now parents.  

- That according to Mr Kolvin, there was no set capacity at the premises 
but the premises were usually very sparsely occupied.  There were 
always required to be at least 8 security staff on duty under the 2003 
Act licence  but during peak times extra SIA staff were on duty.  

- That the voucher system was in place for customers paying in cash, 
whereby vouchers were issued that customers could use as if they 
were cash to call of individual dancers to cubicles; however this would 
now change to written agreement forms for the VIP suites. 

- That there had been no complaints received since the application has 
been made.   

- All CRB checks and relevant forms had been submitted to the 
Licensing Officer by 5th March 2015.  

- That regular staff training was conducted every 3 months 
- That the premises got their business through their website, word of 

mouth and repeat business. 
- That, according to Mr Kolvin, the drinks price list was displayed in 

booklets on tables however the Applicant was happy to make this more 
robust. The premises did not make their money from drinks and 
according to Mr Kolvin, it was up t officers to come in to say that the 
display of pricing was insufficient.   

- That there was always a Manager at the premises and during busy 
periods there were two.  If there were ‘pinch points’ where many VIP 
rooms were required, Mr Kolvin stated that his client would have to 
make provision, or customers would have to wait for a few minutes. 

- That there was no other venues owned by this company 
- That, according to Mr Heron, the number of complaints from the 

premises was disproportionately large compared to other similar 
venues.  

- That not all complaints had been brought to the Applicants’ attention as 
some were only intelligence reports, and the 2 complaints brought to 
their attention were withdrawn once CCTV footage was shown. No 
complaints had actually materialised into prosecutions or civil claims. 

- That there would be no direct negotiations with dancers as there was 
now a tariff/price list in place.  

- That the crystal decanter in the Studio 54 VIP room had been removed. 
- That a ‘Challenge 25’ policy is operated at the premises and the 

Applicants were happy to add this as a condition in relation to sexual 
entertainment. 

- Councillor Ronald asked about how the Applicant ensured that they 
were not hirin vulnerable individuals as dancers.  Mr Stewart answered 
that  there was no advertising.  He said that they only take experienced 
dancers,  Dancers are hired through an application process.   They 

Page 159



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

have to sign an agreement.  They are given the option of a working 
audition where they are monitored.  Most work 2 or 3 nights a week 
and are not solely the applicant’s employees.   Cllr Ronald asked how 
long they stay with the applicant.  Mr Stewart said that this was ‘not 
long- about 2 to 3 months.  A lot are students doing degrees,  Mr Kolvin 
thanked Cllr Ronald for raising it and said that more could be done.    

- That the outside of the premises down Alie St and Lehman St is 
covered by a CCTV that moves back and forth. 

- That intoxicated customers are challenged by greeters at the door and 
details of refused customers are recorded in a refusal book.   

- That the premises do not advertise externally and the Applicant was 
happy to accept this being a condition.  

- Member then questioned whether the Applicant would be happy to limit 
the hours to open the premises at 6.30pm each day, to have a clear 
separation between the premises and the School.  

 
Members adjourned the meeting at 8.25pm in order for Mr Kolvin to seek 
instructions from the Applicant. Members reconvened the meeting at 8.40pm 
 
The Chair asked for all interested parties to make their summations.  
 
The Licensing Officer stated that he had nothing further to add to the report. 
 
In summing up on behalf of the objectors, Ms O’Keeffe stated that their 
objection was based on locality and the effect on the community as the 
neighbourhood had changed and continues to change so that it was not 
aligned with a venue like White’s, that there was a primary school within 100 
metres of the premises with 222 pupils regularly in the vicinity exposed to the 
advertising which had been increasing. She stated they were concerned 
before the hearing and were now even more concerned due to issues raised 
during questioning. They were concerned about the staff attrition, the 
vulnerability of the women and what was being done to address that.  They 
were concerned about management of the activities.  The red-lining on the 
plan accompanying the application was misleading.  The agreement regarding 
client rooms was not robust and the services were undefined.  Comments had 
been made about City workers ‘charitably redistributing’ heir wealth, and she 
was concerned about a lack of respect towards the clientele.  This was not a 
new owner; they had been in place for a number of years.  It was only now, 
subsequent to the application, that concessions had been made such as 
timing and advertising, which had not been in place before.  They had had 
opportunities to be respectful of the local community but this had not 
happened before.   
 
In summation on behalf of the Applicant, Mr Philip Kolvin stated that the 
Applicant was content to open at 6.30pm under this licence, to ensure proper 
a separation between the activity of the school and the premises, and would 
undertake to immediately apply to vary the 2003 Act licence to bring it into 
line. All that anyone would see if they walked past was ‘White’s Club’.  He 
also said that they would look into devising a dancers’ welfare policy that 
would be extended to vulnerable women, if the Committee thinks they should 
test applicants to see if women are vulnerable, and would be happy to add 

Page 160



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 14/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

this as part of the conditions too.  Mr Kolvin suggested that this would be 
blazing a trail but that he applauded it, 
 
Mr Kolvin addressed some of the concerns raised such as allegations of 
prostitutes hanging around the club, he said that this had not been mentioned 
before by anybody and there was no evidence of this being connected with 
his client. That dancers will have no solicitation with customers and if there is 
ever evidence of that then it can be brought to the Committee on review of the 
licence. In terms of low cost hotels he said that this was a speculative matter 
and there was no large gathering outside the premises as this was not that 
type of venue. In terms of blight, it was noted that the Licensing Officer’s 
report had said that the area was a commercial area. All the development 
which had already occurred with his clients being there.  There was o 
evidence that the Applicant had been a brake on development. 
 
Mr Kolvin stated that with the reduction in hours – 6 hours 30 minutes having 
been given away since the application was lodged-  and the effect from the 
removal of sexual connotations from the frontage  should help address the 
concerns raised by objectors. The allegation of blight could no longer stick.  
He stated that on the vulnerability of performers, while he did accept that it 
was a perfectly proper point, it was not an issue raised before.. It was a new 
standard that was wanted.  It would be pursued vigorously by his client in the 
weeks to come.   
 
Mr Kolvin concluded by explaining that the Applicant have made legitimate 
investment into the premises, including its lease, had goodwill and employed 
a number of people. It had been there a long time.  There would need to be 
strong grounds to refuse the application.  He said that the fears of parents 
could now be alleviated as opening hours had been reduced. He stated that 
further conditions had been proposed and if Members grant the application 
they will at least know that they had ‘raised the bar’ with real wins for 
regulatory services.  If there are any problems then this can be reviewed each 
year.  
 
The Chair thanked everyone for attending and for all their contributions to the 
meeting. He informed everyone that the decision will be notified to the 
Applicant once all the applications in this first round have all been considered.  
Mr Kolvin thanked the Chair for what he said had been a conspicuously fair 
and thorough hearing.  
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.00 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Committee 

 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 7 

 
Minutes of the Extraordinary 

Licensing Committee meeting 
held on 28

th
 April 2015 
 
 

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 28/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.35 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 28 APRIL 2015 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 

 
Councillor Peter Golds     (Chair) 
  
Councillor Suluk Ahmed 
Councillor Shah Alam 
Councillor Andrew Cregan 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim 
 
 

 
Apologies  

 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Mahbub Alam 
Councillor Amina Ali 
Councillor Rachel Blake 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah 
Councillor Candida Ronald 
 
 
 –  
 
Officers Present: 
 
Agnes Adrien 
 
Leo Charalambides 

– (Team Leader, Enforcement & 
Litigation, Legal Services) 

– (Legal Advisor) 
Kathy Driver – (Principal Licensing Officer) 
David Graham 
Andrew Heron 

– (Legal Advisor) 
– (Licensing Officer, Licensing 

Department) 
John McCrohan – (Trading Standards & Licensing 

Manager) 
Gurwinder Olive – (Senior Lawyer, Legal Services) 
Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer, 

Democratic Services) 
 
 
 

Page 165



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 28/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and announced the procedure 
of the meeting, which was noted by the Committee.  
 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made.  
 
 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
 

2.1 Sexual Entertainment Venues 
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Gurwinder Olive, Senior Lawyer introduced the 
report which set out the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee and 
the process for the determination of Sexual Entertainment Venues (SEVs) 
transitional applications by existing operators under the statutory scheme.  
 
It was noted that the function for determining SEV applications was reserved 
to the Licensing Committee by the Council when the legislation for licensing of 
SEVs was adopted on 26 March 2014.  
 
Ms Olive explained that the Tower Hamlets Sex Establishment Licensing 
Policy proposes ‘nil’ as the appropriate number.  The Policy provides that the 
Council will not apply this limitation when considering applications from 
existing operators if they can demonstrate in their application: 

• High standards of management 

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue 

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for SEVs 
 
It was noted that applications had been received from four existing operators 
and the Licensing Committee Hearings for these applications had been listed 
separately to allow Members sufficient time to consider the separate 
applications. 
 
A Licensing Committee Hearing took place on 17 March 2015 in respect of 
Nag’s Head and a further Licensing Committee Hearing took place on 14 April 
2015 in respect of White’s Gentleman’s Club.  It was noted that the 
Committee did not make a decision on either of the above dates.  The 
meeting on each occasion was concluded with applicants being advised that 
matters would be determined after consideration of all applications.  
 
It was further noted that the applications for White Swan and Metropolis would 
be considered by the Licensing Committee at this meeting, as these 
applications are to be considered on paper in the first instance, as there were 
no objections or history of complaints.   
 
Ms Olive concluded by stating that further legal comments were contained in 
the reports for each application. 
 

Page 166



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 28/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Licensing Officer introduced 
each application in detail making reference to the report and appendices 
contained in the agenda packs.  
 
Ms Driver highlighted each application as follows;  
 
White Swan  
 

• That the transfer of the licence took place in 2013 

• That they had has a licence historically 

• That the venue was split in two parts, one part was designated for SEV 
activity and one part was for the bar area.  

• That there was one licence for the whole venue 

• The pub was mainly for the Gay community.   

• That the consultation and advertisement processes were complied 
with. 

• That there were no objections against the application 

• That the hours applied for were in line with current hours.  

• That the CCTV camera system was now of a better quality,  

• That residents within 50 meters of the premises were written to  

• That the determination of the vicinity around the premises was set at 
100 meters from the premises.  

 
Metropolis  
 

• That the licensee was in place since 2005  

• Current licence was under the old regime 

• That the current premises licence was for the ground floor, 1st floor and 
2nd floor.  

• That there were no objections against the application  

• That all requirements for advertisement were complied with.  

• That complaints were minimal 

• That the area was majority a commercial area.  
 
Concerns were raised by Members that they have often seen a mobile vehicle 
advertising the premise with sexually images.  
 
Nags Head 
 

• That the hearing for the application was heard by Members on 17th 
March 2015 

• That there had been no objections from Responsible Authorities except 
for one local resident.  

• That there had been support from the staff at the premises. 

• That minutes of the meeting was included in the agenda  

• That the applicants were happy to accept standard conditions and had 
also agreed to further conditions specific to their premises which had 
been agreed with Licensing Services and Trading Standards and were 
included in the supplemental agenda.   

Page 167



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 28/04/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Whites Gentleman’s Club 
 

• That the hearing for the application was heard by Members on 14th 
April 2015 

• At the hearing the Applicant had amended the hours to 18:30 hour to 
04:00 hours to help address the concerns raised by parents of the 
children who attended the School which was in close proximity to the 
premises.  

• That all requirements for advertisement were complied with.  

• That after a site visit from Officers, a plan of the premises detailing 
CCTV camera locations was produced.  

• That further conditions had been offered by the Applicant ie. 
Introduction of agreement forms for the hire of VIP rooms, the removal 
of the word ‘Gentleman’s and the sillouate of a female image from the 
signage at the front of the premises, no advertising in the borough or 
outside the borough.  

• That in addition they would devise a policy for the welfare of the 
performers, and add additional CCTV cameras in the lobby area and 
would operate a challenge 25 policy instead of the current challenge 21 
policy.  

 
It was noted that the residents’ concerns were mainly in relation to the 
premises being in close proximity to the school, changes to the area, the 
development of residential homes and allegations of prostitution in the area 
however there had been no evidence to substantiate that.  
 
In response to a question it was noted that the school was not part of the 
consultation process as it was not in the 50 meter radius.  
 
With no further questions the Chair adjourned the meeting at 7.12pm to 
deliberate on each application. The Chair reconvened the meeting at 8.40pm.  
 
The Chair announced that Legal Officers would contact the Applicants/or their 
Legal Representatives for each premises and ask a few questions which 
would then help Members determine a decision for each application.  
 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for attending and for all their contributions to the 
meeting. He informed everyone that the decision will be notified to the 
Applicants once correspondence is received from the Applicants.  
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.50 p.m. 
 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Committee 

Page 168



 

 

 

APPENDIX 8 

 
Minutes of the Extraordinary 

Licensing Committee meeting 
held on 12

th
May 2015 

 
 
 

Application for a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence for 
Charlie’s Angels, 30 Alie Street 

London, E1  
 
 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 12 MAY 2015 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 

 Councillor Peter Golds (Chair) 

  
 Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Andrew Cregan 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah 
Councillor Candida Ronald 

 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
  

 
Apologies  

 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed 
Councillor Mahbub Alam 
Councillor Shah Alam 
Councillor Amina Ali 
Councillor Rachel Blake 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim 
Councillor Amy Whitelock-Gibbs 

 
Others Present: 
 
Guy Ladenburg – (Item 2.1) 
Maria Guida – (Item 2.1) 
Abdul Malik – (Item 2.1) 
Abdul Ali – (Item 2.1) 
Bronagh Nugent – (Item 2.1) 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Leo Charalambides 
Kathy Driver 

– (Legal Advisor to the Committee) 
– (Principal Licensing Officer) 

Andrew Heron – (Licensing Officer) 
John McCrohan – (Trading Standards & Licensing 

Manager) 
Gurwinder Olive – (Senior Lawyer, Legal Services) 
Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer) 

Page 171



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and announced the procedure 
of the meeting, which was noted by the Committee. The Chair enquired how 
long Mr Ladenburg required to present his case and stated that he would 
allow the objector the same amount of time.  Mr Ladenburg and the objector 
indicated that they were content with the procedure. 
 
 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made.  
 
 
 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

2.1 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Charlie's 
Angels, 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Licensing Officer introduced the 
report which detailed the application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
Licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) for Charlie’s Angel, 30 Alie Street, London 
E1 8DA.  
 
Ms Driver explained that this application was a new application trading as 
London City Traders Ltd. The existing operator was Mr Abdul Malik who was 
also the sole director of London City Traders Ltd. Ms Driver referred to page 
60 of the agenda, a letter to Ms Maria Guida, Solicitor acting on behalf of the 
Applicant, from Mr Andrew Heron dated 16th February 2015 clarifying the 
transitional provisions in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions 
Act) 1982.  
 
It was noted that the premises currently had a licence under the Licensing Act 
2003 that permits sexual entertainment. The licence was originally granted on 
10th March 2006 and amended by a variation application on 8th September 
2009 and a further minor variation on 8th January 2014 in relation to the 
layout.  Mr Abdul Malik had been the licence holder since June 2011 and the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) since May 2013. It was noted that the 
history and the running of the business was a relevant consideration. 
 
Ms Driver continued to highlight and refer to the hours applied for, the maps 
and layout of the premises, the complaints and enforcement history, and the 
site visit made at the premises by Officers. Ms Driver confirmed that the 
Applicant had met the advertising/notice requirements, and all objections were 
contained in the agenda and additional documents were contained in the 
supplemental agenda.  

Page 172



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
Ms Driver continued to refer to the appendices in the report and stated where 
the relevant documents were contained in the agenda. It was also noted that 
the report author and officer who undertook the inspection of the premises 
was present at the meeting and was available to answer any questions.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Guy Ladenburg, Legal Representative for the 
Applicant, explained that this was a straight forward application with a twist 
which required clarification. It was noted that the application was set out as a 
new application; however, he explained that there had been a clerical error 
when completing the application form. He urged Members to treat this 
application as an existing operator as there was clear links that the premises 
already existed and was operated by the same management. He explained 
that law treats new applicants and existing operators very differently and that 
it would not be fair to penalise the Applicant due to a clerical error made by 
their solicitor.  
 
He explained that it was evident from the papers, objections and history of the 
premises that this premises was an existing operator and for it to be noted 
that the premises had been providing sexual entertainment since 2008. Mr 
Ladenburg explained that there were 30-40 performers working at the 
premises together with 8-10 members of staff.  
 
It was also noted that no responsible authorities had objected to the 
application which clearly illustrated the good management of the premises. Mr 
Ladenburg referred to the Tower Hamlets Sex Establishment Policy on page 
142 of the agenda which detailed Club Oops (now known as Charlie’s Angles) 
as part of the existing businesses that held premises licences under the 
Licensing Act 2003 with permissions that would be affected by the adoption of 
the sexual entertainment venue licensing regime. This demonstrated that the 
law protects existing premises as the Tower Hamlets SEV Policy has a nil 
policy on new applications.  
 
Mr Ladenburg concluded that London City Traders Ltd Director and Mr Abdul 
Malik was the same person and can demonstrate clear historic management 
of the premises. Mr Ladenburg said that he recognised that they were legally 
separate entities but it was obvious and clear that it was the same person, this 
is also evident from the objections received which refer to the existing 
premises and therefore believed it to be unfair to penalise an existing operator 
due to human error/clerical error. He stated that it was a unique set of 
circumstances and if a licence was not granted the business would have to 
stop trading on 1st June 2015.  
 
In response to questions from Members it was noted; 
 

- That the premises had been trading as Charlie’s Angels since January 
8.  

- That Mr Abdul Ali was the previous manager from May 2008 to June 
2011 when the licence was transferred to Mr Abdul Malik.   

- That both Mr Abdul Malik and Abdul Ali continue to manage the 
premises and have both been in control since 2007.  

Page 173



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Mr Leo Charalambides, Legal Advisor to the Committee questioned on behalf 
of Members why Mr Abdul Ali was absent and not mentioned in the 
application, however present during the site visit conducted by Licensing 
Officers on 8th April 2015. Mr Ladenburg stated that that there was no 
obligation to detail every manager in the application, as Mr Abdul Ali, worked 
part time as a manager and consultant and therefore not included in the 
application as there was no formal obligation to outline the hierarchy of the 
management structure.  
 
Further questions were raised in relation to the sub lease contracts, share of 
profits, operation structure etc. 
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 7.15pm for Mr Ladenburg to seek 
instructions from his clients. The meeting was reconvened at 7.30pm. 
 
Mr Ladenburg explained that Mr Abdul Malik was in charge of the premises, 
the Premise Licence Holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr 
Antonio Pomerico (detailed in the application) was the floor manager and Mr 
Abdul Ali was a part time manager with a consultancy role. He then explained 
the relationship between the freeholders, management company and 
leaseholders this was also detailed on page 52 of the agenda. It was noted 
that the initial management agreement was between JK Holdings and Club 
Oops however Club Oops went into voluntary liquidation and JK Holdings 
have now given the management control to Mr Abdul Malik. It was noted that 
Mr Malik was responsible for the management of the premises and sole 
director of the company and that profits were not shared.       
 
The Chair varied the procedure of the meeting at the request of the Objector 
who made their submission before the Applicant. 
 
Ms Bronagh Nugent, Head Teacher of English Martyrs School, explained that  
when the premises first got their licence there were not many residents 
however the demography had now changed and it was now a more residential 
area.  The borough had in her view been improving with an increase in 
residents, services and amenities.  There had already been a shift towards 
residential character and this would continue as new buildings were being 
completed. It was noted that the School was in very close proximity to the 
premises which caused concerns to parents and children from the school.  
 
She raised concerns as to the fact that there were two SEV premises in such 
close proximity, that parents of children who lived in a 50 meter radius had not 
been consulted and therefore asked Officers to look at better ways of 
consultation as not all people read the East End Life newspaper or walk past 
premises to see adverts displayed.  
 
Ms Nugent continued to explain that 157 families had signed a petition 
opposing the licence for the premises and those parents and children are 
often faced with sexual activity and drug abuse around the area.  
It was also noted that the bright façade, signage of the premises and  
performers visible and audible in the streets and outside the premises makes 

Page 174



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

the premises more apparent. She highlighted the public safety of children who 
were maturing in age and walking past the premises as the school was open 
till 6pm for after school clubs etc.  
 
Ms Nugent also highlighted the fact that there had been an increase of drug 
dealing in the area. That performers were hanging around outside the 
premises and walking to local shops wearing inappropriate clothing or wearing 
dressing gowns.   
 
Ms Nugent concluded that the performers were not following the company’s 
code of conduct and management were not managing the premises. Lastly 
Ms Nugent requested that the Applicant should consider reducing their hours 
of operation and starting at a later time of 6.30pm in order to have a clear 
separation between the premises and the school.  
 
In response to questions the following was noted; 
 

- Ms Nugent confirmed that the drug dealing and sexual activity seen on 
the streets were not directly linked to the premises.  

- That the consultation process was adhered to and residents in a 50 
meter radius were written to. 

- That complaints relating to noise nuisance from taxis outside the 
premises could not be linked to the premises. 

- That the changing nature of the area was due to big developments, 
regeneration of the area, development of student accommodation, 
more residential apartments, family homes, 4 local supermarkets, 
coffee shops and other local amenity in the area.    

- Ms Nugent confirmed that that the vicinity was a mix of commercial and 
residential accommodation as stated in the report.  

- That the School car par overlooked the premises and can be on the 
journey route to and from the school. 

- That the comments in relation to sexual activity and an increase in drug 
dealing were anecdotal from parents and members of staff, they 
included one parent and mostly staff.  

- That any offending signage or advertisement would be removed as 
suggested in the conditions put forward by the Applicant. 

- That the applicant was happy to add a condition that performers would 
not go out of the premises unless they are appropriately dressed.  

- That the Applicant would be happy to start SEV activity from 6.30pm 
and start licensable activity (bar) from 4pm.  

 
Members then heard from Mr Ladenburg, in making his submission he made 
reference to the Tower Hamlets Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy and 
explained that the premises already existed and was trading with express 
permission under the Licensing Act 2003. He referred to the 
complaints/enforcement history on pages 18-19 of the agenda and stated that 
the issues relating to taxis outside the premise was hard to manage as it was 
outside their control, however they would consider a condition to help address 
such concerns.  
Mr Ladenburg stated that the personal statements in the supplemental 
agenda addressed the concerns raised by the objectors and as for the use of 

Page 175



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

the rubbish bin outside the premises, the Applicant should not be criticised for 
others using the bin and causing an overflow. It also noted that there had not 
been a police objection in terms of an increase in drug dealing in the area.   
 
He then referred to the objection from the Ward Councillors whose concerns 
were that the venue may impact on the area but it was to be noted that the 
premises already exists and they had not mentioned that it was having any 
impacts at the moment. He also claimed that the allegations from Ms Nugent 
were anecdotal and not substantiated by any evidence. Mr Ladenburg stated 
that the Applicant was happy to start SEV activity from 6.30pm onwards in 
order to clearly separate any SEV activity from the School and would also 
remove any imagery of sexual nature or suggestive signage from outside the 
premises.  
 
Mr Ladenburg concluded that the premise was an existing premise, 
recognised and known as ‘Charlie’s Angles’. He said that if the premise is not 
dealt with by way of an existing premises then with its previous track record 
and strong management operation there was sound reason for the policy to 
dis-apply. He stressed that there would be no chance of a repeat clerical error 
and for Members to note that out of the previous 11 existing premises only 5 
applications had been submitted.  
 
In response to questions from Members the following was noted; 
 

- That the Applicants did not think it was reasonable to reduce the hours 
to 6.30pm, however, would accept the reduced hours if Members felt it 
necessary and proportionate and would help fall in line with other SEV 
venues in the borough.  

- Concerns were raised in relation to the terrace area outside the 
premises which was visible to walkers that goes by.  

- That the Applicant was happy to raise the barrier/screen outside the 
premises so that people using the terrace would not be visible.  

- That the terrace/smoking area was used by both performers and 
customers. 

- That there was no separate smoking area for performers.  
- The Applicant proposed that they could raise the canopy and screen 

and separate the area into two, with a small area for performers and 
the other area for customers.  

- That there would be a sign inside the premise which would indicate 
clearly who the duty manager was on that day and time to ensure there 
is management on the premises at all times. 

- That security staff take more of an active role in advising patrons 
leaving the premises to leave quietly and respect the needs of local 
residents.  

- That four of the performers lived above the premises.  
- That management and performers did not accept that there was anti-

social behaviour or crime and disorder at the premises.  
- That management and staff ask customers to leave quietly and use a 

registered taxi firm. 

Page 176



LICENSING COMMITTEE, 12/05/2015 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

- That the performers leave after the customers have left, if performers 
are intoxicated, management do not let them drive home and always 
arrange for a taxi to take them home.   

- That waiters/waitresses and security staff often go to the shops on 
behalf of the performers.   

- That the closest shops were approximately 200 yards away from the 
premises.  

- That the entrance to the flat above the premises was approximately 1-2 
minutes, walk away. 

 
In response to questions from Mr Charalambides, Mr Ladenburg explained 
that there had been a change in the area but did not accept the changes to be 
of such extreme to change the character of the area. Mr Ladenburg accepted 
that there were further residential properties but the nature of this premises 
was not inappropriate as the premise was well run and if it doesn’t offend 
anyone then it shouldn’t affect the fact that there would be two SEV venues in 
close vicinity.  

 
Mr Charalambides summarised a few amendments that required noting; 
 
That the code of conduct on page 98 should make reference to coats rather 
than jackets, to include plans and layout of the premises, including designated 
smoking areas for customers and for performers, that advertising would not 
be permitted, to display tariffs and price lists and to keep records of 
performers etc.  

 
Mr Ladenburg accepted these amendments and confirmed that they would 
remove the advert outside the premises and change the signage to remove 
the silhouette of a naked woman. Mr Ladenburg stated that the Applicant was 
happy to accept the varied conditions set by the Council which were circulated 
at the meeting.  

 
There were no closing remarks from either parties.  
 
The Chair thanked everyone for attending and for all their contributions to the 
meeting. He informed everyone that the decision will be notified to the 
Applicant once all the applications in this first round have all been considered.   
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.10 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Committee 

 

Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 9 

 
Original standard conditions  

 

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Two 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES

General 

1. The Licensee must remain in personal control of the premises at all times that it is 

trading or nominate in writing an individual over the age of 18 with the authority to 

direct activities within the Premises. 

2. The licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change in directors, 

trustees, partners or other persons concerned in the management of the licensed 

activities within fourteen days of such change. 

3. The Licensee shall provide in a timely fashion copies of any documents 

reasonably required by an authorised officer of the Council to prove compliance with 

this Licence. 

4. The licensee must give written notice to the Council if s/he wishes to surrender the 

licence. 

5. The Council reserves the right to amend or alter these conditions (provided that 

such change will not prevent the operators from viably carrying on the business of 

the premises) following consultation with licensees

6. The meaning of “sexual entertainment” is given in Section 27 of the Policing and 

Crime Act 2009. 

Management 

7. A suitable and sufficient number of door supervisors and trained staff will be 

employed (based on a risk assessment) when sexual entertainment is offered. Their 

duties will include monitoring customers and performers to ensure that the Code of 

Conduct for Dancers and the House Rules are being obeyed and enforcing if 

necessary. 

8. The Licensee shall prepare and implement a Code of Conduct for Performers. The 

Code shall be approved by the council and will not be altered without their consent. 

9. The Licensee shall prepare House Rules governing the conduct of customers. The 

Rules shall be approved by the council and shall not be altered without their consent. 

Premises 

10. The approved layout of the premises shall not be altered without prior consent of 

the council. 

Page 181



11. The Licensee shall ensure that the interior of the premises where sexual 

entertainment is offered shall not be capable of being seen from the outside of the 

premises, and that the exterior is maintained to a satisfactory level of decorum. 

12. The sexual entertainment shall take place only in the areas designated by the 

Council and the approved access to the dressing room(s) shall be maintained whilst 

sexual entertainment is taking place and immediately thereafter. 

13. CCTV shall be installed to cover the inside and the outside of the premises 

covering all areas to which the public have access, including private performance 

areas and booths, entrances and exits but excluding toilets. All cameras shall 

continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and the recorded 

images shall be kept available for a minimum of 31 days Recorded images shall be 

made available to an authorised officer or a police officer together with facilities for 

viewing. The recordings for the preceding two days shall be made available 

immediately on request. Recordings outside this period shall be made available on 

24 hours’ notice. 

Advertising 

14. The Licensee shall not permit the display outside of the premises of photographs 

or other images, excluding trademarks or logos, which are unacceptable to the 

Council, and which indicate or suggest that sexual entertainment takes place on the 

premises. 

15. Where the Council has given notice in writing to the Licensee objecting to an 

advertisement on the grounds that, if displayed, it would offend public decency or be 

likely to encourage or incite crime and disorder that advertisement shall be removed 

or not be displayed. 

Admission to the Premises 

16. No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted on the premises when 

sexual entertainment is being offered, and a clear notice to this effect will be 

displayed at the entrance. 

17. Customers who appear to be under the age of 21 must be asked to provide a 

Pass-Scheme approved photographic card, their passport or photographic driving 

licence to prove their age. Prominent notices must be clearly displayed to this effect 

at the entrance(s) to the premises. 

18. The content of the House Rules will be made known to customers prior to their 

admission to the premises when sexual entertainment is provided. 

Page 182



19. Signs must be displayed at appropriate locations advising that any customer 

attempting to make physical contact with a performer will be asked to leave; 

Performers 

20. Entertainment will be given only by the performers engaged by or through the 

Licensee and there will be no audience participation. 

21. The licensee shall keep a record of each performer, including their proper name 

and any aliases, and their residential address. With each record the licensee shall 

keep a copy of a photographic form of identity and proof of address of the performer. 

22. On days when sexual entertainment is provided, the licensee, or their 

representative, shall keep a record of those performers working at the premises on 

that day in a daily record. The daily record shall be immediately available for 

inspection by authorised officers. 

23. The licensee shall ensure that each performer signs the code of conduct in their 

proper name, acknowledging that they have read and understood and are prepared 

to abide by the code of conduct, and signed copies be kept on the premises for 

inspection by authorised officers. 

24. During a performance there shall be no full bodied physical contact between the 

customer and the dancer other than the transfer of money or token at the beginning, 

during and conclusion of the dance. 

25. During a performance there shall be no full bodied physical contact between 

dancers and they are not to touch each other’s breasts and or genitalia. 

26. Performers must remain fully dressed while on the premises, except while 

performing in areas approved by the Council for sexual entertainment and in the 

approved changing rooms. 

27. Performers must redress at the conclusion of the performance. 

28. Performers must never be in the company of a customer except in an area open 

tithe public (excluding the toilets) within the premises. 

29. The Licensee is to implement a policy for the safety of the performers when they 

leave the premises. 

Customers 

30. The House Rules regarding customer behaviour will be implemented at all times 

that the premises are operating with sexual entertainment. 

31. No member of the public shall be admitted or allowed to remain in the dance 

area if they appear to be intoxicated or under the influence of illegal substances. 

Page 183



32. Customers may not be permitted to photograph film or electronically record any 

performance. 

33. Customers shall not be permitted to enter non-public areas of the premises such 

as changing rooms. 

Page 184



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 10 

 

Revised standard conditions  

 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 11 

 

Letter from Dadds 

Solicitors for White Swan  

 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 12 

 

Letter from Dadds 

Solicitors for  

White’s Gentleman’s Club  

 

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 13 

 
Further documents for 

consideration for Nags Head 
Public House 

Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



P
a
g
e

 2
2
3



P
a

g
e
 2

2
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 14 

 
 

Further documents for 
consideration for Metropolis  

Page 225



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 15 

 
Further conditions for 

consideration for Charlie’s 
Angels  

Page 237



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 239



Page 240


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	2.1 Determination of Applications for Sexual Entertainment Venues
	APPENDIX 1
	SEV Report - Appendix 1
	APPENDIX 2
	SEV Cover Report - Appendix 2
	APPENDIX 3
	SEV Cover Report - Appendix 3.doc
	APPENDIX 4
	SEV Cover Report - Appendix 4
	APPENDIX 5
	Draft Licensing Committee Minutes - 17 March 15
	APPENDIX 6
	Draft Lic Committee Minutes - 14 April 2015 - final
	APPENDIX 7
	Draft Lic Committee Minutes - 28 April 15
	APPENDIX 8
	Draft Licensing Committee Minutes - 12 May 15
	APPENDIX 9
	Appendix 9 Previous Standard Conditions
	APPENDIX 10
	Appendix 10 Revised Standard Conditions
	APPENDIX 11
	Appendix 11  Letter 18-5-15 White Swan
	APPENDIX 12
	Appendix 12  Letter 18-5-15 - Whites
	APPENDIX 13
	Appendix 13 Conditions for Nags Head
	Appendix 13B Plan for Nags Head
	APPENDIX 14
	Appendix 14 Metropolis
	APPENDIX 15
	Appendix 15 - Charlie's Angels


